St. Charles Parish
Planning Board of Commissioners
June 4, 2009


Minutes


CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Yvonne Wolfe, Theron Dufrene, Billy Booth, Dick Gibbs, Morris Becnel, Neal Clulee, Stanley Foster

MEMBERS ABSENT:
None

ALSO PRESENT:
Marny Stein, Steve Romano, Kim Maurosek-Marretta and Danielle Honor of the Planning Department.

Mr. Becnel:
Ok next item PZR-2009-08 and I guess we have a PZSPU-2009-03 which we’ll probably vote on congregate maybe?

Ms. Stein:
You have to take them up separate.

Mr. Becnel:
You have to do them separate, ok PZR-2009-08 Mr. Romano

Mr. Romano:
Thank you Mr. Chair the applicant is requesting a rezoning of lots U and AA from R-1-AM to R-1M  to develop a RV park according to the applicant the  RV site is intended to be for private use there are currently several un permitted travel campers on site and the purpose of seeking rezoning approval is to legitimatize this use. The area is part of a 8400 acre blocks of property owned by Texaco the property was occupied by current residence since the 1960’s and brought it in 2006 under the ownership of Chevron the property was subdivided and sold to the existing lease holders .The entire existing residence area is surrounding by wetlands mitigation bank owned and operated by Chevron USA so it is unlikely that development will occur in the vacant areas near this site. Although the applicant intends for the property to be for private RV use, the zoning regulations do not distinguish between a private or commercial RV campground. Additionally, it cannot be conditioned as such either through the rezoning process or the special permit use. Therefore, consideration of this case must be regarded from the standpoint of what is allowed within the R –1M zoning district. 

The St Charles Parish Code requires rezoning proposals to meet the guidelines of at least one of the three criteria headings listed in Applicable Regulations.  This application does not meet any of the three.
The first is not met because land use patterns have not changed to remove reasonable use of the land under the R-1AM zoning district. Legal use of the site for a residential mobile home is similar to the surrounding uses that abut the property.  

The second criteria is not met because Rezoning to R-1M to legitimize the RV use could create land or building usage which is, or may become, incompatible with existing single family character or usage of the neighborhood. If rezoned to R-1M, the potential exists for changing the quietness of the community with RVs, travel campers and trailers coming to and from the site. 

The third criteria is not met because it would be a spot zone. The rezone would create R-1M zoning in an area surrounded by a R-1AM zoning district.  The neighborhood consists of single-family and mobile homes.  The department recommends denial

Mr. Becnel:
Ok, Thank-you Mr. Romano, Mr. Clulee

Mr. Clulee:
Mr. Romano, I spent about an hour and a half back there today, I was with the neighbors I took a look there’s some trailers there’s some older houses you can tell the peoples been there for years, did you have any complaints from any neighbors or did you get anybody for or against any problems that you know of?

Ms. Marretta:
I can respond to that only because we initially started having conversations with Mr. Savoie  because there was a code complaint that came in so our code enforcement office initiated the discussions with Mr. Savoie, I don’t think he understood until that happened that his trailers were not legally placed.

Mr. Romano:
Mr. Clulee I did get a few phone calls.

Mr. Clulee:
For or against?

Mr. Romano:
Against

Mr. Clulee:
Did you get anything in writing?

Mr. Romano: 
No, nothing in writing, everything verbal,but no calls for support.

Mr. Clulee:
Ok

Mr. Foster:
What would become of the people that’s living there now, If this doesn’t pass I mean they have people living in trailers now would they have to move?

Mr. Romano:
Yes Sir

Mr. Foster:
So if we deny this and the council denies it those people that’s living there would just have to get out. Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Romano:
They could move their mobile home to an approved site.

Mr. Becnel:
They wouldn’t even be grandfathered?

Mr. Romano:
Nope

Ms. Marretta:
At this point based on the research that we did in our department we couldn’t find a grand fathered or legal non-conforming use of property for RV use although Mr. Savoie has indicated that RV’s has been on that property for a very long time but we can’t determine whether that was prior to zoning taken place in 1981 or not we just weren’t able to determine that.

Mr. Becnel:
Ok, Mr. Foster

Mr. Foster:
This is in my district, I spoke with a couple people and I really didn’t get any negative responses our councilman Paul Hogan, I spoke with him today he also spoke with a couple of people, nothing negative, nothing positive but nothing negative either just nothing.

Ms Marretta:
You might want to open the public hearing and then have discussion after that.

Mr. Clulee:
Good idea

Mr. Becnel:
Ok this is a public hearing for PZR 2009-08 anyone wishing to speak in favor please come forth, Mr Savoie. Please state your name and address for the record.

Mr. Savoie:
Elton Savoie 719 Ayo Lane, and I did go out, I had the signatures one time before and I went back for the 2nd time, when I filled out the application I had all my neighbors sign it and tell them what I was doing and all, which I turned in with my application and my councilman suggested that I go out again and make sure everything was good with my neighbors. Which I have 5 copies I didn’t know how many people was on this board and I have the original that I showed to them and underlined if they had any objections to the three criteria’s this is everybody in my neighborhood, the check marks are the people abutting my property and the rest are the people that can see my property.

Mr. Clulee:
Do you have some copies of that.

Mr. Savoie:
Clyde just signed one. (Some chatter amongst the board and applicant) Like she said I didn’t know I was doing anything wrong and the people that come on my property stay for months, I done had a guy stay for a year he was my cousins uncle, It’s not that people will be coming there on the weekends, it’s not that kind of deal. For my friends, family I have a friend of mine looking for somewhere to come down for months visit stuff like that.

Mr. Becnel:
You’re not leasing any spots to like construction workers that travel from site to site?

Mr. Savoie:
Nope, Nope, These people when they come, they come for months. They come and use the washer and dryer in my house, that’s how well I know all these people


I wouldn’t put nobody in my yard I don’t know. I’m trying to get it re-zoned in order to keep the people I know

Mr. Clulee:
Mr. Chairman I think this goes to the council to if I’m correct and we have some people in the audience but we also have these names so I don’t know if would beneficial for them to talk for or what, I’m assuming everybody’s here for this.

Mr. Savoie:
All the people abutting my property are hearing.

Mr. Becnel:
We will continue the public hearing if they want to talk independently, give me a show of hands if you plan on voting, your names are on the list? OK, let’s continue with the public hearing.. Is there anyone hear to speak in opposition? Ok please come forward state your name and address for the record.

Ms. Scholle:
I’m Linda Scholle I live at 832 Barber Rd in Paradis and I did contact Paul Hogan today, Terry Authement and Carolyn Schxenader  to voice my opinion against this development I don’t think it’s something that we need in a residential area, we currently have RV Parks in other areas in our parish on the westbank  you can look at what we have in paradis  right there in mozella off of hwy 90 I don’t think that’s something you would want in your backyard, you can look at the one across from Marjorie’s on hwy 90 I don’t think you want  THAT in your back yard and as far as stationary people we have no guarantee if a zoning change is permitted that this won’t change in the future and we will not be able to stop it , cuz  we’ve found in the past that once a zoning change has been issued under certain circumstances they don’t necessarily live up to those circumstances I’ve got a problem right now with a neighbor for 20 years trying to get his property cleaned up and I can not get it done Planning and Zoning hands are tied.

Mr. Becnel:
Thank you Ms. Scholle, any one else wishing to speak in opposition?

Mr. Clulee:
I’d like to ask Ms Scholle something; you say you live on Barber Rd 

Ms. Scholle:
Correct

Mr. Clulee:
About how far from the property

Ms. Scholle:
Maybe a quarter of a mile

Mr. Clulee:
A quarter mile away

Mr. Savoie:
She can’t see my property

Ms. Scholle:
I can see your property when I go down Barber Rd.

Mr. Becnel:
One at a time please

Mr. Clulee:
What I’m asking, this is operation where these people live, I talked to Mr. Ayo his dad lived there for years and years I don’t know how long you and Mr. Scholle lived there,

Ms Scholle:
30 years

Mr. Clulee:
30 years but ya’ll live further up towards Mr. Bordner and all right?

Ms. Scholle:
Right

Mr. Clulee:
Ok, that’s all I wanted to ask you so you are quite a bit away from where this is.

Ms. Scholle:
Well I don’t think it’s quite a bit away because if you get transit people coming in there in the future it will affect me.

Mr. Clulee:
Thank you

Mr. Becnel:
 Anyone else wishing to speak in opposition , Ok Mr. Gibbs

Mr. Gibbs:
 I wanted to ask Ms Scholle, do they have other residence like this existing right now in the area, do they have similar situations 

Ms. Scholle:
RV’s,  no I don’t know of  anybody living in a RV, I take it back we have a couple of them they’re grand fathered in, they come and they go. They come in with the turn arounds and things like that and they are grand fathered in so there’s no stopping it., because the zoning is there.

Mr. Becnel:
Some were grand fathered in before the parish created a zoning ordinance.

Mr. Marousek, Mr. Romano, Ms Stein what’s the likely hood I’m looking at this outline piece of property, first of all is this a current aerial photogragh?

Mr. Romano:
Yes Sir

Mr. Becnel:
Ok is there any further development in that area right now particularly when your looking towards the bottom of your picture.

Mr. Romano:
As we stated before that area is part of a Mitigation Bank and it’s highly unlikely and that’s not his property anyway the only thing that’s his property is the part you see outlined.

Mr.Becnel:
Ok a couple other people wanted to come and speak before I close the public hearing, who ever wants to speak in favor please come forward. Please state your name and address for the record.

Ms. Ayo:
Belinda Ayo I live at 725 Ayo lane right next door to Putt and I’m the type of person I open my blinds and when I open my blinds these people are right next to me I have no problem with it, we are all friends they are very friendly people there’s no kids, no dogs, no nothing and I know where Ms. Scholle lives at and where she lives at she can’t see these campers unless she drives down Wisner St. these people are not a problem, they’re not workers that come in and out they are friends of everybody that lives back there, we get together bar b ques, cook together there’s no problem. So I don’t know what the problem is with her having against these people staying there and that’s all I need to say, thank you.

Mr. Becnel:
Ms Ayo it’s not a matter of personality we just have planning and zoning regulations that has been put into place.

Ms. Ayo:
I understand that

Mr. Becnel:
And we’re just a layman’s board trying to enforce them so it’s not a matter of personalities what so ever. Anyone else wishing to speak in favor, Please state your name and address for the record.

Mr. Ayo:
Robert Ayo Jr. 725 Ayo Lane, I don’t have no problem at all with what  Mr. Elton Savoie wants to do, I live right next door to him, I can respect what Ms. Scholle and Mr. Scholle have to say, where we live at, there will never be no development. Behind us it will never be sold, it’s all a Mitigation Bank, it was sold to us because we lived there for so long, I’ve been there for 40 years my daddy’s been there for 60. And I’m speaking upon him, he is not here now but he don’t have no problem with it. It’s our own lil life back there you know and where these people live at it’s no problem for them at all, and it’s no problem with nobody that lives back there, Thank you.

Mr. Becnel:
Thank you Mr. Ayo

Mr. McCully:
Good Evening Ladies and Gentlemen my name is Clyde McCully I live a 324 Eula St. in Paradis, I also have some property right down the street at the end of that street where the outlined property is, if you have visited the place you would see that it’s sort of conducive to what he’s requesting, it’s sort of a wooded area and there’s mobile homes in the area already, they are RV’s are campers you want to call them across Barber Rd. on the corner there’s at least three sometimes four those are the grand fathered ones they’re talking about. The wooded area like they said is Mitigation Bank and so that would never be developed, that’s set aside for wetlands and so we’re sorta like on the edge as far saying there’s RV parks in the area already or other places in the parish, we can’t give those people monopoly and not give someone else an opportunity to place start a development if there requesting we have to fairly consider there request., actually as ya’ll have heard, the campers exist on the property already and it hasn’t bother any one so I wouldn’t see it being a problem.

Mr. Becnel:
Thank you Mr. McCully, Mr.Clulee

Mr. Clulee:
Mr. Chairman, I don’t know if you’ve had the opportunity to go back there, it’s behind a canal, it’s up against a Mitigation Bank, like Mr. McCully said, mitigation you can’t build nothing on it, and it looks like to me it’s been there forever.

Mr. Becnel:
Ms. Marousek if we allow whether this be Mr. Savoie or anyone else.

Ms. Marousek:
Are you going to close the public hearing?

Mr. Becnel:
Ok anyone else wishing to speak in favor

Mr. Ayo:
May I speak on more time?

Mr. Becnel:
Quickly, make it quick

Mr. Ayo:
Like I said I respect Ms Scholle and em but let me say something, they’ve been there 30 years I was ten years old we use to ride a horse where there house is at, that was nothing but cow pasture, well they rezoned it then to make a neighborhood, and I can understand the problem they got with the next door neighborhood but that don’t have nothing to do with what’s going on here.

Mr. Becnel:
Right, I understand, Ok one more opportunity 

Mr. Savoie:
Like he was saying like it’s all been there for forever, you know a minute, them trailers, we’ve been living there all our life, just because it’s coming before you then somebody, you know what I’m talking about. Like I said, I didn’t know I had a problem till they came see me, you know.

Mr. Becnel:
No further discussion the public hearing is closed, Ms Marousek , if we grant this application for a casual motor home now and then whether it be his friends that stay for months at a time, what’s the repercussion, what happens if they decide down the road to open this up commercially, do they have to come back to the parish?

Ms Marousek:
No, this is what Steve was saying in his report is that our zoning regulations unfortunately don’t have a category for a private RV use like Mr. Savoie is indicating so if the property is rezoned there is the potential for that to become a commercial RV park and that’s what we had to evaluate this based on.

Mr. Foster:
If we do rezone this, I kind a have a problem with rezoning it but I also have a problem with displacing people, this whole area back there, I don’t know if anyone’s seen it is all like this. It’s not going to be no more that it already is, even if it would become a RV park it would be a small one, it would be out the way. I just have a problem with displacing people. So I don’t know how I cannot approve this personally.

Mr. Clulee:
And it still goes to the council, they have the ultimate say so.

Mr. Marousek:
In addition to the rezone and as you mentioned Mr. Becnel there is a companion special permit use that discusses the actual criteria for this because it is below the 2 acres size limit. So there is the potential to apply stipulations to the special permit use if you are interesting in that, that’s the next one.

Ms. Wolfe:
What is the possibility of us correcting this, making it possible but do we have any?

Ms. Marousek:
Based on our review the code, the staff couldn’t come up with a way to recommend approval in terms of the criteria that we have to evaluate it.

Mr. Gibbs:
If we dis approve this, how many people are going to be misplaced, roughly, or have to change their situation?

Mr. Marousek:
I honestly don’t know because in my conversation with the applicant he indicated that the individuals there use it as a recreational, you know there come and go when they come to visit him, that’s what he indicated to me but you might want to ask him that question.

Mr. Gibbs:
Well not just him but are there other situations like his that are going to be affected if we dis approve this?

Ms. Marousek:
No it’s just his property.

Mr. Gibbs:
I mean I don’t want to sound like 1 is OK and 50 is not OK my point is I’m just wondering if there are other situation like his.

Ms. Marousek:
We have other situations that are , when this particular code violation came up to light, we’re currently working maybe half dozen similar code violations in the Paradis, Des Allemands area which are RV uses in residential areas.

Mr. Clulee:
That’s what I have a question about, when this came up, how did this come up, was it a complaint?

Mr. Romano:
It was a complaint

Mr. Clulee:
But we’re not allowed to ask who?

Ms Marousek:
I honestly don’t know who, I don’t know if they left their name, they can leave an anonymous complaint.

Mr.Clulee:
Steve, can you tell me?

Mr. Romano:
No actual I have no idea

Mr. Clulee:
I just was wondering

Mr. Becnel:
Kim how does this differ from, there’s a couple of smaller ones along Old Spanish Trail in Paradis, how does this differ, the resident lives in the back he’s probably got 20 stalls.

Ms. Marousek:
I would imagine those have R-1M zoning but I don’t have that zoning in front of me or there grand fathered commercial RV trailer parks you know we have a few throughout the parish that are grand fathered uses and we’ve been able to find record of there continued use, particular because there commercial operations and this one hasn’t been so that kind of works against Mr. Savoie in this case.

Mr. Becnel:
Ok, any further discussion Ok seeing none please cast your vote:


PZR-2009-08
Requested by:
Eldon J. Savoie for a change in zoning classification from R-1AM to


R-1M at Lots U and AA of Estay Subdivision. Section 39 T14S-R20E 
(719 Ayo Lane & 420 Wisner Street), Paradis. Council District 4.  

                         Passed


Yeas: Booth, Gibbs, Becnel, Clulee, Foster


Nays: Dufrene,Wolfe


Absent: None

Mr. Becnel:
Ok we have an accompany request that goes along with the rezoning application.

Mr. Romano: 
This a special permit use application to develop a private RV park site of one half acre instead of the minimum one acre as spelled out in R-1M zoning. However, approval is subject to rezoning approval being granted by the Parish Council (PZR-2009-08). Therefore, approval of this application should be contingent on rezoning approval of the site to R-1M. 


Currently several unpermitted travel campers are situated on the site (Lots AA and U). According to the applicant, they are privately owned and some or all are occupied sporadically and have been there for several years. Applicant also states that there is no intention to expand the use of the site other than to acquaintances. However, because there are no provisions for private RV parks in the Zoning Ordinance, this application has to be considered with the assumption of the potential for commercial use.



The applicant also states that recreation and washateria facilities are not needed on his site and that his neighbors are opposed to his having to fence the site. He is requesting a waiver to the requirement to install those facilities. Per the applicable regulations detailed above, the Commission and Council have the authority to grant waivers to the special permit use guidelines as detailed above. If approved, the applicant will need to combine the two lots into a single lot through the administration resubdivision process. The  Department recommends approval in conditions upon rezoning approval of the zoning case by the parish council and subsequent approval of the following waivers 



No fencing required



No washateria required



No recreation area required



We would also like to add that a condition be placed on the maximum number of RV’s or travel campers be no more than six reason being that when you look at the size of the lot and then the required set backs for all of those the most that you can safely fit is five possible get six on there so Ms. Marousek recommends 5. 

Mr. Becnel:
Denisty becomes an issue right?

Mr. Romano:
Denisty becomes an issue after that, yes sir

Ms. Marousek: That and the safe separation between the trailers

Mr. Becnel:
Ok public hearing, please come forward

Mr. Savoie:
My name is Eldon Savoie and the reason I’d asked planning and zoning is because I don’t have dogs like Linda said, no kids it’s always retired people that come in for months at a time, sit on my porch, wash their clothes at my house, it’s people I know personal people and I don’t have a problem with 5,6, whatever they say cuz we probably won’t have that many anyway. I just wanted to keep what I got. You know what I’m saying.?

Mr. Becnel:
My concern is just commercial development and I just don’t like to see the high density, if personal friends want to come and go obviously the council will have the ultimate decision, any one else wishing to speak in favor.

Mr.McCully: First I’d like to ask Mr. Romano a question, I heard you say 2 acres  

          required for a RV park, has that been changed in the last year?

Mr. Romano:
No Sir

Mr. McCully: I read it to be 1 acre

Ms. Marousek:With 2 acres you need a special permit use, if you have one acre 

Mr.Romano:
It’s actually 2 acres required for a manufactured home park under special permit use it includes RV parks on one half acre provided that special provisions of RV parks are met.

Mr.McCully: Now regardless of the requirements here, are the considerations of the 

          friends are whatever if they have restrictions this thing can be changed to a RV  

          park if they follow the requirements as they were saying it would be a nice neat 

 looking lil place, I mean there’s so many square foot required per trailer, they have a place to park they’re vehicles and it should have to be a problem.

Mr.Favaloro: My name is Cy Favaloro I live directly behind him I see everything that 




goes on also and I just came tonight mostly just to say I don’t have any problems 

            with what Mr. Savoie have to do over there.

Mr. Becnel:
Any one else to speak in favor, any one in opposition, seeing none the public hearing is closed, any council discussion, Ms. Marousek:

Ms. Marousek: The one thing to consider is if you choose the limit the number of RV’s 



that he has on his site, you might want to consider talking to Mr. Savoie to see 



how many he feels he needs as one way to preclude if in the future it becomes a 



commercial use we would be able to limit by the special permit use the number of 



trailers that could be on the site.

Mr. Clulee:
I think Mr. Savoie said he was ok with 5 and I think that’s what you wanted, ok good. 

Mr. Becnel:
We need to entertain a deviation for no fencing requirement. No  washerteria no recreation and no more than 5 RV units on the property

Mr. Clulee:
I make that motion

Mr. Gibbs:
I’ll second

Mr. Booth:
I’ll second

Mr. Becnel:
Ok we have a motion and a 2nd any commission discussion, please cast your votes. Ok numbers are the same for both waiver and special permit use. Ok this goes to the council on the July 6, 09 meeting Eldon it is advisable that you be there as well. Thank you very much.


PZSPU-2009-03

Requested by:
Eldon J. Savoie for a special permit for an RV Park of one-half acre in an 
R-1M zoning district (see PZR 2009-08) at Lots U and AA of Estay 
Subdivision. Section 39 T14S-R20E (719 Ayo Lane & 420 Wisner 
Street), Paradis.  Council District 4. PASSED

Yeas: Booth, Gibbs, Becnel, Clulee, Foster


Nays: Dufrene,Wolfe

Absent: None
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